
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

November 07, 2023 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  November 6, 2023 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

PERSONNEL 

1. Update from Chief Mike Hardy on personnel. 

2. To recommend the hiring of two police officers - Chief Mike Hardy. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Ms. Danielle Alleman, AHS teacher and DECA Club sponsor, and the club members to present the 

DECA program. 

MINUTES AND APPROVAL OF BILLS 

1. To approve the minutes from the October 3, 2023 and October 17, 2023 regular City Council meetings 

and the October 17, 2023 Committee meeting. 

2. To ratify bills paid in the month of October 2023. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Mr. Roderick Darby with Vermilion Reach Group to discuss events for Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day. 

2. Discussion and possible action for the Veteran's Heritage Festival at the Louisiana Military Museum 

on November 10, 2023- November 11, 2023 - Dr. Elista Istre. 

3. Discussion with the property owner of 1112 Martin Luther King Drive pertaining dilapidated structure, 

junk, garbage, rubbish and long grass on property and authorize any action if needed. 

4. Discussion with the property owner of 1110 Martin Luther King Drive pertaining to the dilapidated 

structure and to authorize any action if needed. 

5. Discussion with the property owner of 404 N. Bailey Street pertaining to the dilapidated structure, 

overgrowth, trash and other rubbish on the property and to authorize any action if needed. 

6. Discussion with the property owner of 814 Solomon pertaining to the burnt dilapidated structure, junk 

and rubbish on the property and authorize any action if needed. 

7. To accept the recommendation of the Abbeville Planning Commission to grant a variance for Wal-

Mart's existing free-standing sign's 30ft height. 

8. To award the contract for demolition at 803 S. Guegnon. 

9. To award the contract for demolition at 821 Alphonse. 

10. To award the contract for demolition at 608 Hawthorne. 

11. To adopt the City of Abbeville vehicle use policy. 

12. To request the Municipal Employees Civil Service Board to consider an amendment to Municipal Civil 

Service Rule VII; annual leave and other leaves of absences, Section 2:  Sick leave and Section 

4:  Leave of absence without pay. 

13. To adopt a resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute an assignment of lease concerning Valour 

and Gulf Coast Operators, LLC. 

1



14. To adopt a resolution requesting financial assistance from the State of Louisiana under the fiscal year 

2023-2024 Local Government Assistance Program and Community Water Enrichment Fund Program. 

15. To approve payment of partial payment estimate #8 in the amount of $72,855.50 payable to Shaw 

Construction for the FY 2021 LCDBG Sewer Rehab Project. 

16. To approve payment of partial payment estimate #1 in the amount of $31,201.20 payable to Southern 

Constructors, LLC relative to the new fishing pier and wharf at Lafitte Drive-In Park. 

17. To ratify expenses for the repairs to the UV Treatment System at the Wastewater Treatment 

Plant.  The cost is approximately $30,000.00. 

18. To ratify payment of the invoice from Bihmco in the amount of $15,000.00 for sewer repairs on 

Loraine Street, Washington Street and Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive. 

19. Discussion pertaining to the need for patrol cars and an outside storage unit - Chief Mike Hardy. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Engineers  

2.        Attorney 

3.        Public Works Director 

4.        Parks and Recreation Coordinator 

5.        Mayor 

6.        Police Chief 

7.        Fire Chief 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Roslyn White's office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



1  

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting 

October 17, 2023 

 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on October 17, 

2023 at 5:20 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 

 Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony Hardy 

 

Members Absent: None 

 
 

Also Present: Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Stewart Head, Electrical Department Superintendent 

 Cristian LeJeune, Digital Media Assistant 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Steve Moosa, CPA 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

 Kim Touchet, Engineer 

  
  

Mayor White stated that we are here for a Finance Committee meeting chaired by Councilman 

Francis Touchet, Jr.  She asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item.  

There were none.   

 

She turned the floor over to Councilman Touchet.  He stated that the only agenda item is an 

update of the budget expenses and revenues after the 3rd quarter of 2023.  He asked Mr. Steve 

Moosa to provide the update.   

 

Mr. Moosa distributed spreadsheets comparing the revenue 2022 actual and 2023 actual and 

budgeted for the first nine months of each year.  Sales tax collected in 2023 is slightly ahead of 

what was collected in 2022.  Both water and sewer revenues were higher than last year at this 

time and both were ahead of budget.  Electrical revenue is ahead of budget by 7%.  All revenues 

are ahead of budget of the prior year.  The second spreadsheet compared payroll for each 

department.  The general fund budget is ahead of budget and the Utility System Fund is 

overbudget by 2%.  The third spreadsheet compared expenses of all departments.  The only 

department that is currently overbudget is the Water Department.  There have been several 

necessary repairs at the Water Treatment Plant due to the freeze in late December and issues 

with the clarifier and valves and other ongoing maintenance.  These are one-time expenses and 

the City can absorb those costs.   

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to accept the financial 

report as presented by Mr. Steve Moosa.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

3



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

October 3, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on October 3, 2023 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 
    Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Chris Hardy, Lieutenant-Abbeville Police Department 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator, QSA 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

 Kim Touchet, Engineer 

 Dr. Erick Knezek, candidate for BESE District 7 

 Kristen Moore, Nehemiah Project Director of Youth Initiatives 

 Arlene Collee, Giant Omelette Festival 

 Elaine Dill, Municipal Employees Civil Service Board member 

   

Mayor White called the meeting to order and requested a roll call.  She then asked Mrs. Elaine 

Dill to lead those assembled in prayer. M a y o r  W h i t e  asked Dr. Erick Knezek. to lead the 

assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

Dr. Erick Knezek, a candidate for BESE District 7, discussed his qualifications for the position and 

plans for the office if he is elected 

 

Mrs. Kristen Moore discussed the Pathways Forward and College Tour program through the 

Nehemiah Project. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to amend the 

agenda to add the approval of partial payment estimate number 7 in the amount of $76,964.09 

relative to the FY 2021 LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation project.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Mayor White asked again if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item since 

the amendment to the agenda occurred after the original request for public comments.  There 

were no comments. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

minutes from the September 5, 2023 and September 19,2023 regular City Council meetings.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

4



 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the 

request from the Giant Omelette Celebration to have a historic marker embedded on Concord 

Street.  The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

  YEAS:  4(Campbell, T. Broussard, Touchet, Hardy) 

  NAYS:  0 

  ABSENT: 0 

  ABSTAIN: 1(B. Broussard) 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

Mr. Bryan Fisher provided an update on the property located at 410 Chevis.  The property is up 

to code and no further action is required. 

 

407 Clark Street- No one was present to represent the property.  Mr. Bryan Fisher stated that 

the addition is pulling away from the main structure of the house and needs to be demolished.  

Once the addition is removed, he will make another assessment on the rest of the house. 

 

-04 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to condemn the 

addition (structure adjacent to the house) at 407 Clark Street.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to authorize 

the Mayor to execute and submit all documents relative to the Delta Regional Authority 

Strategic Planning Grant.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/Hardy 

Resolution R23-29 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign and submit all necessary documents along with 

adopting certain procedures in connection with the Water Sector Program for a Water 

Treatment Plant Improvement Project. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to award 

the contract for the removal of tall grass, heavy underbrush, fallen tree, weeds and bamboo at 

819 Saint Peter Street to the low bidder, Acadiana Demo & Waste, LLC in the amount of 

$2,000.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to accept the 

recommendation of the Abbeville Planning Commission to approve the subdivision of property 

located on South Hospital Drive owned by Roy Young which is to be sold to Charity Baptist 

Church.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

a special event permit for Les Amis du Francais en Vermilion to hold the 2023 Fit for French 2-

Mile Fun Walk from 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM on November 4, 2023.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve a 

special event permit for Junior Auxiliary of Vermilion to hold the Courir De L’Omelette from 

7:00 AM to 10:00 AM on November 5, 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

5



 

-10 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve a 

special event permit for Junior Auxiliary of Vermilion to hold the Jack O Lantern Jubilee from 

4:00 PM to 8:00 PM on October 31, 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/B. Broussard 

Resolution R23-30 

 

A resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute a servitude/easement agreement with Saint 

Andrew Dung-Lac Roman Catholic Church to provide utilities to said property.   

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/B. Broussard 

Resolution R23-31 

 

A resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute a servitude/easement agreement with Cajun 

Power Properties, LLC to provide utilities to said property. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to adopt the 

procedure for participation in open meetings by those with ADA recognized disabilities as per 

ACT 393 of the 2023 regular Legislative Session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve 

payment of partial payment estimate number 7 in the amount of $76,964.09 payable to Shaw 

Construction for the FY 2021 LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation Project.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Mayor Roslyn White 

- She has drafted a letter to be given to landlords for eviction proceedings.  The letter is to 

inform them of the City’s implementation of a comprehensive plan to regulate and to 

eliminate litter and roadside debris as much as possible.  She has forwarded the draft to the 

City Court Judge for his review and approval.  The letter will be posted online after his 

approval and she will share it with the Police Jury. 

- Discussed the events of the upcoming Louisiana Cattle Festival that is scheduled for this 

weekend. 

- There were a lot of crime issues over the weekend.  Some arrests have been made and the 

Police Department is still working on the rest.  Councilman Touchet and Councilman 

Broussard asked Lieutenant Hardy to ask Chief Hardy to get all agencies involved.  Mayor 

White agreed that we need to use every resource available. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- Asked Lieutenant Hardy for additional patrols to monitor night walkers due to the increase 

in vandalism.  Councilman Campbell stated that we do have crime but you can’t restrict 

people’s liberties. 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- She asked everyone to get involved with Vermilion Reach on Facebook for the upcoming 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day activities. 

6



- The NAACP Banquet is scheduled for October 21, 2023. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

7



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

October 17, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on October 17, 2023 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 
    Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Stewart Head, Electrical Department Superintendent 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

 Kim Touchet, Engineer 

 Todd Vincent, Engineer 

 Ms. Vonn Williams and, Mr. Smart, Envolve Community-Live Oak 

 Ms. Marshetta, on-site manager of Live Oak Manor 

 Lauren Trahan, Nehemiah Project 

   

Mayor White called the meeting to order and requested a roll call.  Mayor White led those 

assembled in prayer. M a y o r  W h i t e  asked Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. to lead the 

assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

Councilwoman Broussard had requested that representatives from Envolve Community, Live 

Oak Manor, attend the meeting to address concerns over crime at Live Oak Manor and to 

discuss possible solutions.  Ms. Vonn Williams and Mr. Smart attended the meeting.  The on-site 

manager of Live Oak Manor was also in attendance at the meeting.  Councilwoman Broussard 

stated that people are living in fear at Live Oak Manor and something needs to be done 

regarding the crime.  Mayor White stated that there have been ongoing issues on and around 

the property so she set up a conference call to get the crime there under control.  They are 

needing a permit to fix four units and she refuses to sign off on the permit until we feel like we 

can put people in safe spaces.  Mr. Smart stated that he is the director of security for Envolve 

and oversees 100 properties.  He resides in Georgia.  They have 32 cameras, security and 

camera monitoring.  They screen their applicants but they cannot screen those who they invite.  

They have a master list of those not allowed on the property.  If they are found on the property, 

the tenant is evicted.  They are now providing that list to the Abbeville Police Department.   Ms. 

Lauren Trahan stated that the low-income housing is in disrepair and she is concerned about the 

standard of living there.  Ms. Marshetta stated that they do inspections.  It is the responsibility 

of the tenant to keep their bathroom clean so that mold does not grow.  Ms. Williams stated 

that the complex was last renovated ten years ago and it will be eligible for a renovation in five 

years.  Mayor White stated that we do have a need for low-income housing and the complex 

8



profits off of the low-income individuals so we need to hold the complex to a higher standard.  

Stewart Head told the representatives that they need an electrical upgrade now.  They could not 

open the disconnect box when there was a fire.  This is a fire hazard.  Councilman Campbell is 

concerned about the personal items being dumped onto the street.  Councilwoman Broussard 

stated that the on-premises security guards should not become friends with the tenants.   

Councilman Touchet stated that Mayor should not issue the building permit until there are 

changes.  This is about quality of life.  Mayor White stated that she will have to see significant 

progress before she agrees to issue the permit but will continue to work with them to see this 

through. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to ratify 

bills paid in the month of September 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

budget to actual report for the month of September 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

street name change of Handy Street to Ruffin Drive.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve a 

special event permit for Bikes, Brews and Omelettes Two to be held on November 4, 2023.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/Hardy 

Resolution R23-32 

 

A resolution requesting funding from LA DOTD for the Capital Improvement Plan for the Airport. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve change 

order number 2 relative to the New Fishing Pier and Wharf at LaFitte Drive-In Park contingent 

upon the Office of Community Development approval.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve 

payment of the invoice from Delta Fire and Safety in the amount of $6,569.92 for repairs to the 

2013 HME Pumper.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to 

authorize the Mayor to sign all documents relative to the technical assistance program through 

the Louisiana Infrastructure Technical Assistance Corporation’s Technical Assistance Program.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Chris Gautreaux stated that the pilings have been delivered to LaFitte Drive-In Park for the 

upcoming pier and wharf project.  They will be closing the dog park and fishing pond most likely 

within one week for the work to begin.  The walking trail will remain open as long as it is safe.  

We will post the language about the closing on the sign and social media. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize 

the Mayor to execute the Fiscal Agency Agreement with Bank of Abbeville and Gulf Coast Bank 

effective October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2025.  The motion carried unanimously. 

9



 

-09 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to grant a 

variance for the freestanding sign for Chloe Rose’ located at 232 S. Main Street.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White discussed the popup parklet and walkability demonstrations in downtown 

Abbeville.  The Louisiana Department of Health and Hospital have granted the City of Abbeville 

$10,000 to move the initiative forward.  We will be putting things in place as a demonstration 

prior to them becoming permanent.   One of the ideas we are throwing around is choking 

Highway 82 down to one lane when you get to the split instead of  two lanes.  We are also 

considering a four-way stop or a mini roundabout in the intersection.  We will observe behavior 

of drivers and pedestrians, then put a demonstration, observe what it does to speed and 

walkability and then get feedback from the community.  We would then take all these things 

into consideration before we design the final project.  We will also look at safety crossing for the 

people who work at the courthouse who park in the shelled parking lot on the southeast side.  

We will do a popup demonstration there to make the intersection safer.  We will get feedback 

and then decide how we will finalize that design.  The idea is to see how we can use our streets 

better for cars, bikers and walkers.  Once we implement the demonstrations downtown, we can 

use them in other areas.  The last one is the popup parklet that will be at Tito’s.  This will allow 

people to dine outside as a temporary structure.  We would be able to see how it affects the 

business and we could also get feedback from the customers.  It will be modular in design so we 

can use it again.   

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the re-

portion of property lines for 315 Samson Street.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to authorize the 

purchase of a used 12 X 24 portable building for the Public Works Department.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

- Discussed the various projects the Public Works Department are working on.  The gas 

company bored into our sewer line but it was repaired today.  The Street Department is 

preparing for upcoming VC Homecoming parade and the Omelette Celebration.  The Cattle 

Festival went very well. 

 

Mayor Roslyn White 

- Gave the Parks and Recreation Coordinator report since Byron and Kristin could not be here 

tonight.   

- She reminded everyone that the Vermilion Reach Group is having a cleanup day on October 

28, 2023 beginning at 8:00 AM. 

 

Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

- The overtime earned by the Police Department for the Cattle Festival is $16,702.00.  Mayor 

White added that the overtime for the City crews is about $4,000.00. 

- Councilman Touchet asked if Stonebridge is in compliance.  Chief Hardy stated they are not.  

Councilman Touchet stated that we have to hold them accountable and we need to find 

some teeth to get them in compliance. 

 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

- They are beginning to paint the fire hydrants. 

10



 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- The NAACP banquet will be held Saturday at the American Legion.  The tickets are $25.00 in 

advance or $30.00 at the door. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- Discussed upcoming events coming to downtown Abbeville.  Junior Auxiliary and Rotary will 

hold a function in Magdalen Square for Halloween.  The annual pansy sale and po-boy 

fundraiser will be held on November 17, 2023 in Magdalen Square.  We are having Sounds in 

the Square on Thursday and the Famers Market on Saturday. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to enter into 

executive session to discuss prospective litigation after formal written demand by Southern 

Poverty Law Center regarding current district maps.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to reconvene 

the regular meeting from executive session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White stated that the executive session was held to discuss prospective litigation from 

Southern Poverty Law Center.  At this time, we will take this under legal advisement. 

 

-14 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to take the 

prospective litigation from Southern Poverty Law Center regarding current district maps under 

legal advisement.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



RULE VII 

ANNUAL AND OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

Section 2 Sick Leave 

 

2.1 All employees in the classified service shall receive one day of sick leave for each calendar month 

of service up to a maximum of 180 days. 

2.2 Repealed. 

2.3 An employee who has taken sick leave shall file with his Department Head a certificate stating 

the cause of his absence and the amount of leave taken.  If the amount of leave taken is in 

excess of two (2) consecutive days, a registered physician must certify to the nature of the illness 

or injury and the necessity for absence.  If there is a reasonable doubt as to the validity of an 

employee’s claim for consecutive sick leave of two (2) days or less, the Department Head and/or 

the Appointing Authority may require other acceptable proof that the employee was ill and 

unable to report to work.  When it has been determined that an employee has charged an 

absence against sick leave, although no actual sickness occurred, the value of absent time must 

be deducted from the employee’s annual leave or if earned annual leave is insufficient, 

deduction shall be made from employee’s pay.  In addition, disciplinary action may be taken by 

the appointing authority. 

2.4 Workmen’s Compensation Insurance payments:  If and when the disability of an employee is of a 

nature that he is entitled to payments under any Workmen’s Compensation Insurance which is 

effective, he shall at his option, be entitled to receive sick leave with pay to the extent that sick 

leave has accumulated, provided that the City of Abbeville is reimbursed in an amount 

equivalent to that received by the employee as Workmen’s Compensation Insurance while he is 

on sick leave with pay.  It shall be the duty of the employee to reimburse the City of Abbeville 

payments for sick leave in an amount equivalent to that received as Workmen’s Compensation 

for each day during which payments for sick leave and Workmen’s Compensation are both 

received.  After all accumulated sick leave has been used, the employee shall be entitled to 

Workmen’s Compensation only. 

2.5 On December 31st of each year the unused accumulated sick leave earned by an employee shall 

be carried forward to the succeeding year, subject to the cap established in Section 2.1, above. 

2.6 In the event an employee is terminated for cause or voluntarily terminates employment without 

the benefit of retirement, all rights to compensation for unused sick leave will be forfeited.  In 

the event the employee retires from the retirement system with the required years of service, all 

accumulated sick leave will be applied to the employee’s service year accumulation in the 

retirement system as may be allowed by law. 

 

 

 

123



Provided, however, that employees voluntarily terminating their employment with the City of 

Abbeville and being re-employed shall have their sick leave reinstated as follows: 

(a) Re-employment within three months of voluntary termination – 100% of sick leave reinstated. 

(b) Re-employment within six months of voluntary termination—75% of sick leave reinstated. 

(c) Re-employment within nine months of voluntary termination – 50% of sick leave reinstated. 

(d) Re-employment within twelve months of voluntary termination – 25% of sick leave reinstated. 

Any employee re-employed after one year has lapsed since his voluntary termination of 

employment with the City of Abbeville shall not be entitled to reinstatement of any accumulated 

sick leave. 

2.7 Employees on authorized leave of absence without pay shall not earn sick leave during the period 

of their leave of absence but shall retain all accumulated sick leave up to the time their leave 

commences. 

2.8 Transfers, promotion or demotions shall in no way affect the status of earned sick leave. 

2.9 In computing charges against accrued sick leave, deduction shall be made only for work days.  If 

employee is reimbursing city with workmen’s compensation check, charges of one-half day for 

each work day shall be made to the employee’s accrued sick leave. 

2.10 Employees who have used up all accumulated sick leave and annual leave and have not been 

granted extended leave without pay under Section 4 of this rule shall be automatically 

terminated and placed on the appropriate reemployment list. Employees automatically 

terminated and seeking reemployment will be required to complete a physical and a drug screen 

prior to being placed on the rehire list.   Any employee rehired from such re-employment list 

shall be assigned the step classification to which he was assigned upon termination.  Any 

employee so rehired shall have annual leave benefits calculated based upon his original 

employment date less that time in which leave of absence without pay was exercised and less 

that time between termination and re-employment 

____________________ 

Rule VII, Section 2.1, 4/3/78.  Amended. 

Rule VII, Section 2.2, 3/3/78.  Repealed. 

Rule VII, Section 2.3.  2/13/03.  Addition. 

Rule VII, Section 2.5, 3/15/17.  Amended. 

Rule VII Section 2.6.  4/3/78.  3/15/17.  Amended. 

Rule VII Section 2.10. 9/5/91.  Amended. 

 

 

124



Draft  
11/15/2023 
 

 

 

Statements to be Considered to Include in the Present Handbook 

RULE VII ANNUAL AND OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

Section 4   Leave of Absence Without Pay 

4.1 The appointing authority may, upon written request of an employee and with the approval of the 

Director, grant a leave of absence without pay in accordance with the schedule below during a period of 

twelve (12) consecutive months whenever it is determined to be in the best interest of the city.  

Leave without pay is a temporary, non-pay status and absence from duty, granted by the Appointing 

Authority and with the approval of the Director of Personnel, upon an employee's written request. 

 

Continuous Service    Maximum Leave Allowed 

Less than six months    30 calendar days 
More and six months but less than one year 90 calendar days 
Over one year but less than two years  145 calendar days 
Over two years but less than three years  200 calendar days 
Over three years but less than four years 255 calendar days 
Over four years but less than five years  310 calendar days 
Over five years     365 calendar days 

 

• The employee does not earn holiday pay, annual leave, or sick leave during a pay period while on 

leave without pay. 

• The employee does not contribute to the retirement system; therefore, he does not earn service 

credit toward retirement while on leave without pay. Credit service accumulates once the 

employee returns to work and contributes to the retirement system.   

• All leaves of absence without pay requested and granted shall not exceed a period of one (1) 

year. 

4.2 All leaves of absence without pay shall be granted only after all accumulated sick leave (if applicable) 

and annual leave in excess of one-third (1/3) of each applicable leave balance at the onset of the illness, 

injury, or necessity for absence has been exhausted. 

4.3 Requests for leave of absence without pay may be granted for periods not to exceed thirty (30) 

consecutive calendar days.  Thereafter, all extensions of such leave may be granted in increments not to 

exceed thirty (30) calendar days. 

4.4 All requests for leave without pay for illness or injury in excess of two consecutive days must include 

a statement from a registered physician that the employee is unable to perform his duties and must 

indicate the approximate length of time that he will be incapacitated. 

4.5 Employees shall be provided written confirmation, including starting and ending dates of all leaves of 

absence granted by the appointing authority.  When an employee does not return to work at the 

125



Draft  
11/15/2023 
 

 

expiration of the period of leave without pay authorized here in, he shall be automatically considered 

having abandoned the position and having constructively tendered a resignation. 

4.6. An authorized leave of absence without pay may be curtailed by the appointing authority when it is 

determined to be in the best interest of the city and written notice thereof is furnished to the employee 

ten (10) calendar days in advance. 

4.7 An employee on leave of absence without pay may return to work with the approval of the 

Appointing Authority and the Director of Personnel, prior to the expiration of leave authorized, provided: 

(1)  A written request to return to work is made to the Director of Personnel and the Appointing 

Authority five (5) business days prior to the requested return to work date. 

(2) Requests to return to work from the absences granted for illness or injury must include a 

statement from all treating physicians that the employee is capable of performing the duties of 

his classification without restriction. 

Employees shall be provided confirmation of requests to amend leave of absence authorized prior to the 

expected return to work date. 

When an employee does not return to work on the date requested and approved, he shall be 

automatically considered as having abandoned the position and having constructively tendered a 

resignation. 

 

 

126



The following resolution was offered by ____________________________, seconded
by _____________________________________ and duly  resolved:

RESOLUTION NO. _________

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FROM THE STATE OF LOUISIANA

UNDER THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

AND
COMMUNITY WATER ENRICHMENT FUND PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Louisiana Legislature has appropriated funding for the

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Local Government Assistance Program (LGAP) and Community

Water Enrichment Fund (CWEF) Program; and

WHEREAS, the Local Government Assistance Program offers grants to

eligible municipalities and parishes for a wide range of projects to improve public health,

public safety, living conditions and for economic development purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Community Water Enrichment Fund Program offers grants

to eligible municipalities and parishes for rehabilitation, improvements and new

construction projects for community potable water systems; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and proper to submit applications to

the Louisiana Office of Community Development under the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Local

Government Assistance Program and also the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Community

Water Enrichment Fund Program.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of

Abbeville that Mayor Roslyn R. White is hereby authorized to sign and submit an

application to the State of Louisiana, Office of Community Development under the

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Local Government Assistance Program and also execute any

and all documents should this grant be funded; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mayor Roslyn R. White is hereby

authorized to sign and submit an application to the State of Louisiana, Office of

Community Development under the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Community Water

Enrichment Fund Program and also execute any and all documents should this grant be

funded.

 THEREUPON, the above resolution was declared adopted.

****************************************************************************************************

C E R T I F I C A T E

I, Kathleen S. Faulk, Secretary/Treasurer of the City of Abbeville, do hereby

certify that the above is a true and exact copy of a resolution adopted by the City

Council of the City of Abbeville on November 7, 2023 at which time a quorum was

present and voting.

                                                                         
KATHLEEN S. FAULK
SECRETARY/TREASURER  
CITY OF ABBEVILLE 

kb228rm314

127



128



129



130



131


	Top
	1.	APD Personnel
	2.	APD personnel
	1.	DECA Club
	1.	Minutes
	October 17,  2023 Committee meeting
	October 3, 2023 regular meeting
	October 17, 2023 regular meeting

	2.	Bills
	October 2023 check register

	1.	MLK Day activities
	2.	Veterans Festival
	3.	1112 MLK Drive
	1112 MLK Drive

	4.	1110 MLK Dr
	1110 MLK Drive

	5.	404 N Bailey St
	404 N Bailey Street

	6.	814 Solomon
	814 Solomon

	7.	Walmart sign
	8.	803 S Guegnon
	803 S Guegnon bids

	9.	821 Alphonse
	821 Alphonse bids

	10.	608 Hawthorne
	608 Hawthorne bids

	11.	Vehicle use policy
	City of Abbeville vehicle use policy

	12.	Annual leave amendment
	Section 2 Sick Leave
	Leave Without Pay

	13.	Gulf Coast Operators
	14.	LGAP and CWEF
	LGAP and CWEF resolution

	15.	FY 21 LCDBG pmt #8
	9162-04 PPE#8 - Partial Execution

	16.	PPE #1 LLOP
	PPE #1 (Partially Executed)

	17.	UV treatment repairs
	18.	Bihmco
	19.	Chief to ask-vehicles and building
	1.	No old business
	Bottom



